
 

 

Local Access Forum  - 13 September 2018 1 

 

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY 

 

Dear LAF Member 

 

A meeting of the LOCAL ACCESS FORUM will be held in THE BRECON SUBUD 

HALL, BRECON ON THURSDAY, 13TH SEPTEMBER, 2018 AT 2.00 PM 

when your attendance is requested. 

Notes: 

Tea and coffee facilities will be provided from 1.30pm – please help yourself 

 

It will be assumed that all papers and documents distributed in advance of 

the meeting have been read. 

 

1  WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES (CHAIRMAN)  

 To receive apologies for absence. 

2  CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF 4TH MEETING HELD ON 

17TH MAY 2018 (CHAIRMAN) (Pages 3 - 6) 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign the minutes as a true record of the previous 

meeting. 

3  MATTERS ARISING NOT OTHERWISE APPEARING ON AGENDA 

(CHAIRMAN)  

4  THE MONMOUTHSHIRE WAY (DAVID MORGAN)  

5  HEALTHY, ACTIVE AND OUTDOORS (RICHARD BALL)  

 Members to provide suggestions for routes in or near the communities of 

Brecon, Talgarth, Crickhowell and Bronllys. 

6  THE BEACONS WAY, A WALKERS EXPERIENCE (PHILLIPA 

CHERRYSON)  

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

 

Local Access Forum  - 13 September 2018 2 

 

7  WATERFALLS CAR PARKING PLAN (RICHARD TYLER)  

8  GLASTIR WOODLAND CREATION PROPOSAL, BRYN ARW 

(RICHARD BALL)  

 Proposal for site visit 

9  SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE (STEVE RAYNER) (Pages 7 - 10) 

 See Annex 1 

10  DRAFT RIGHTS OF WAY IMPROVEMENT PLAN  (EIFION JONES)  

 Restricted Item 

11  ANY OTHER COMPETENT BUSINESS (CHAIRMAN)  

 Any other business as is, in the opinion of the Chairman, of such urgency as to 

warrant consideration. 

 

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Richard Ball – 

Richard.Ball@beacons-npa.gov.uk  

 

 

mailto:Richard.Ball@beacons-npa.gov.uk


Brecon Beacons National Park Local Access Forum  

Unconfirmed Minutes of the 4th Meeting held at 2pm on Thursday 17th May 

2018 at Brecon Subud Hall 

 
Present 

 

Ian Mabberley (IM) - Chairman 

Richard Ball – Secretary 

Pam Bell (PB) 

Philippa Cherryson (PC) 

Stuart France (SF) 

Debra Hughes (DH) 

Ian Jenkins (IJ) 

Hywel Morgan (HM) 

Denis Murphy (DM) 

Patrick Dobbs (PD) 

Josie Pearson (JP) 

Ruth Pickvance (RP) 

Tracy Purnell (TP) 

Steve Rayner (SR) 

David Sharman (DS) 

Paul Sinnardurai (PS) 

Toby Veall (TV) 

Kathryn Whitrow (KW) 

Colin Woodley (CW) 

 

Observers 

Judith Harvey (JH)  Warden Manager BBNPA (Item 4) 

Richard Terrell (RT)  Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water (Item 4) 

Eifion Jones (EJ)  Rights of Way Officer BBNPA (Item 5 & 6) 

Lisa Lloyd (LL)   Rights of Way Assistant BBNPA  

Caroline Ferguson  Carmarthenshire County Council 

Cllr Edwin Roderick   BBNPA Member 

 

1. Welcome, Introductions and apologies 

IM welcomed members and observers to the meeting. Apologies were received from Chris 

Waterhouse, Richard Tyler (BBNPA), Sarah Coakham (NRW) and Jonathan Jones (Dŵr 

Cymru Welsh Water). RB introduced PS, Natural Resources Manager, who has taken over 

from Julian Atkins as the BBNPA’s member on the LAF. 

 

2. Confirmation of Minutes of 3rd Meeting held on 22nd February 2018 

The minutes were accepted and the Chairman authorised to sign them as a correct record. 

 

3. Matters arising not otherwise appearing on agenda 

River Usk board walks - IM confirmed that a letter had been sent to BBNPA Chief Executive 

but no response has been received as yet. 

 

BBNPA budget and impacts on the countryside – IM confirmed a letter had been sent to 

Welsh Government (WG) and a response has been received which can be circulated. 

 

Joint funding bid with Powys County Council to NRW for easier access works – RB said that 

they will hopefully hear the outcome of the bid in June. BBNPA has bid for £12,500 which will 

need to be match funded by a further £12500. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Glasitr Woodland Creation Grant – PC said that the planting scheme at Llanover that had 

been discussed at a previous meetings has been granted and trees have been planted but they 

have not allowed the minimum path width for footpaths. PC said she would follow this up. 

 

4. Access at Llyn y Fan Fach 

IM welcomed RT and JH to the meeting. RT said that he had been working together with JH 

to improve access to Llyn y Fan Fach to improve safety and the visitor experience. The road 

up to the cattle grid had been resurfaced in 2017, looking to the future, they plan to deal with 

the traffic congestion that occurs in the area on peak days by increasing the parking area. The 

plan is to minimise the visual impact by using turf reinforcement. They would also like to make 

the access track to the lake more accessible for use by powered wheelchairs. JH thanked JP 

for accompanying them on a site visit and helping them identify where to direct resources. 

The gates across the track at the filter beds are currently an issue, they are locked to secure 

the area around the filter beds. RT confirmed that DCWW owns the track and their legal 

team are currently looking into the legality of the locked gates. HM said that the locked gates 

also cause a problem for local graziers when gathering the sheep. There was discussion as to 

whether the gates were required at all for the reasons put forward by the owners of the filter 

beds (i.e. safety and security). DCWW to try to resolve this issue but no timescale was given. 

 

5. Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) Assessments Consultation  

EJ had forwarded the assessment documents to members prior to the meeting and thanked 

all those that had responded and provided comments. The following points were discussed 

by members: 

Recognising the rights and role of landowners and residents e.g. simplifying the process of 

diverting rights of way around farmyards. 

Dogs – suggested working closely with the tourism team and the specific project looking to 

tackle the problems associated with access and dogs. 

Motorbikes and 4x4 vehicular access – PC said it was clear from the questionnaire results 

that there was a need for education and also promotion of where they can legally go and 

where they can’t. KW thought that as a user group they would not be ignored and that 

provision in the National Park should be looked at. 

Climate change and the effect on the network – the possibility of damage and erosion and the 

increased need for maintenance following storms etc. 

Information about the network – Online information and the increased availability of apps to 

allow easier access to information. Mobile signal availability in the National Park is generally 

quite poor, KW suggested we worked with network providers to improve mobile signals 

allowing visitors to access and use apps in the tourism hot spots. 

Signage – overall need for improved signage, it was agreed that better signage would provide 

users with a better experience whilst possibly alleviating some of the problems encountered 

by landowners where users are not sticking to paths. 

Drone flying – PS confirmed that the BBNPA had a draft policy on the flying of drones on 

BBNPA owned land. 

Page 4



Rights of way to access waterborne activity sites – SR suggested that the ROWIP take a 

broader view of access to and on water as the activities are already happening at a number of 

places with in the National Park. 

Resources – The path priority levels need to be assessed. PC suggested that given that the 

bridleway network is so small and fragmented that some of the important BW links could be 

given a higher priority. Also suggested that routes creating circular walks and linking bus 

routes should be prioritised. 

 

6. Rights of Way applications 

The LAF have recently been consulted on two applications. EJ said that he hadn’t received any 

adverse comments.  

 

7. Access Restriction at Mynydd Du Forest 

RB told members that access to an area of Mynydd Du forest had been restricted due to 

forestry work, signs have been erected and a barrier placed across a footbridge. As the forest 

has been dedicated as CROW access land by NRW (Formerly CCW) an application for an 

access restriction should have been sought and the closure advertised. RB has contacted 

NRW who stated that they are managing access informally using a banksman. RB suggested 

the LAF write to NRW to remind them of their responsibility and the process that should be 

followed. 

ACTION: LAF to write to NRW 

 

8. Welsh Government Funded Access Projects  

RB outlined a number of projects that will be funded by the Welsh Government including 

work at Carn Pica in the Brecon Beacons and the Miles Without Stiles development project. 

RB asked members to forward ideas for other projects or access improvements so that if 

grant money becomes available there is a list in place. 

 

9. Healthy, Active and Outdoors Funding Application 

Discussed under Matters Arising 

 

10. OMM/Events 

Prior to the meeting EJ circulated details of the OMM event which the organisers are looking 

to hold in the Black Mountains in October 2018. The orienteering event will host 2000 

participants over two days. The area covered includes 2 sections of land owned by BBNPA 

and land owned by a number of other landowners. The LAF are consulted on events where 

the number of participants exceeds 501. DM said that he has taken part in OMM events before 

and they are very well organised, he added that traffic to and from the event should be 

carefully considered and he would advise them not to use Gospel Pass as a route to the 

starting venue and also local residents should be informed of the event. PC asked that they 

consider using local businesses and caterers to benefit the local communities. KW asked if 

commoners would be consulted and EJ confirmed that they have already been involved. RP 

has also had experience of OMM events and said that they are very sympathetic to 

Page 5



conservation issues, PS added that the ecological survey carried out for the previous OMM 

held in the National Park in 2013 is on the BBNPA website as best practise. 

Members agreed to support the event. 

 

11. Any Other Business 

SR wanted to alert members to an issue that has arisen on the River Wye just outside the 

National Park boundary where a landowner is trying to charge canoeists for using a specific 

section of the river. This may have an impact on the river access point at the Gliss in Hay on 

Wye and increase congestion there. 

 

12.  Date of the next meeting 

13th September 2018, venue to be confirmed  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



Written Statement - Summary of the responses received to the Sustainable Management of 

Natural Resources consultation 

Last updated 19 June 2018 

Hannah Blythyn, Minister for Environment 

Our consultation on the Sustainable Management of Natural Resources (SMNR) last year attracted a 

large number of responses from stakeholder organisations and individual citizens.   

 

In total, 17,391 responses were recorded during the consultation period and all of these have been 

considered in preparing the Welsh Government’s summary document. 

 

I would like to thank everyone who took the time to contribute to the consultation. Some of the 

proposals secured wide public support where others generated a range of views. Nevertheless, the 

responses have allowed the Welsh Government to gain a better understanding of stakeholder views 

and positions across Wales informing how we take forward our ground-breaking legislation enabling 

us to optimise the opportunities our natural resources provide, whilst ensuring their long-term 

resilience. 

 

The consultation fulfilled its purpose to collate evidence and propositions on how we can develop 

our policies to manage sustainably our natural resources, which underpin our long-term prosperity 

and well-being   

 

The exercise also provided an opportunity to hear views on the possible benefits and challenges the 

UK’s exit from the EU represents, as well as gain views on the regulatory approaches, which may be 

required in the short and long term. 

 

It is encouraging to see that in general there is wide support for delivering a sustainable 

management of Wales’ natural resources. Stakeholders offered new and innovative approaches for 

utilising and also protecting our environment, some of which could present longer term solutions in 

the context of regulatory reforms post EU Exit. 

 

The summary published today presents both a quantitative assessment and an objective synopsis of 

the comments and views expressed by the respondents. Representative organisations and groups 

initiated 17 campaigns associated with specific proposals within the SMNR consultation. The 

campaign responses and individual contributions have all been taken into consideration during the 

analysis and finalising the published document. 

 

The individual elements of the consultation document have been and will be further considered by 

my officials in light of the evidence and views provided. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 9



 

The next stage of the process will be setting out the appropriate timescales for policy development 

over the short and long term, in the context of the Welsh Government’s wider objectives and the 

UK’s exit from the EU. 

 

I have already issued a statement that our existing designated landscapes will be retained and their 

purpose of conserving and enhancing natural beauty will not be weakened, and a further priorities 

statement will be issued following the wide range of comments in response to the Future 

Landscapes Wales report and the SMNR consultation. 

 

I look forward to in the coming days to providing a statement on the refreshed Forestry Strategy 

which takes into account the principles of SMNR and new legislation since its last update in 2009. 

 

Doing even more to develop a more resource efficient, ‘circular’ economy will be taken forward in 

our planned consultation later in 2018 on an update of our waste strategy, ‘Towards Zero Waste’ 

and on a draft route map for a more resource efficient Wales. 

 

Useful contributions have been received in response to smarter regulation proposals; these and 

other views in relation to appropriate regulatory needs for land management post EU Exit have been 

considered in the “Brexit and our Land” consultation document scheduled for publication in early 

July. 

 

There were strong but differing views on how best to reform access legislation. We therefore believe 

that now is not the right time for substantive reform. But we are committed to exploring selected 

aspects of change where there was greater consensus, including on some of the administrative 

arrangements and multi-use paths. We will continue to facilitate further discussions through 

established groups such as the National Access Forum. 

 

Likewise, I recognise there was strong support for the introduction of new financial penalties to help 

address littering from vehicles, the consultation identified a number of issues with the proposed 

new powers and these require further consideration. On this basis we will continue to engage with 

stakeholders and will explore how best to support Local Authorities in implementing their existing 

powers. 

 

Marine planning for Wales is making good progress and I look forward to introducing the first Welsh 

National Marine Plan and will give further consideration to regional plans once we have experience 

from implementing the national plan. 

 

Page 8



Stakeholders and the wider public will be updated on any future developments through established 

working groups and other Welsh Government communications channels. 

 

The published summary of the responses can be accessed at the following link: 

 

https://beta.gov.wales/taking-forward-wales-sustainable-management-natural-resources 

 

Page 9

https://beta.gov.wales/taking-forward-wales-sustainable-management-natural-resources


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Confirmation of Minutes of 4th Meeting held on 17th May 2018 (Chairman)
	9 Sustainable Management of Natural Resources Consultation Response (Steve Rayner)

